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April 23, 2021 
 

Mr. Jeff Hart, PE 
Public Works Director/City Engineer 
City of Beaumont 
550 East Street 
Beaumont, CA 92223 
 
Subject:  TO#54 – Research of Roadway Classification for Veile Avenue, Beaumont, 
CA  
 
Dear Mr. Hart, 
 
We have concluded our investigation of the roadway classification of Veile Avenue on the 
State and Federal roadway system. Our research has revealed the following salient points: 
 

• Veile Avenue is not on the National Highway System. 
• Veile Avenue is shown on the State of California Highway System Map. It is 

designated as a Major Collector (pl. refer to the attached GIS exhibit). It connects 
Oak Valley Parkway to Westward Avenue to the north and south of the City 
respectively. 

• Since the subject avenue is not on the “numbered” highway system of the Federal 
nor State, therefore, it is under the City’s jurisdiction. 

• Further investigation also reveals that due to the extreme low traffic volume and 
utilization from hand, odd alignment, numerous traffic control devices, physical 
geometry interruptions and lack of a direct circulation path, it does not serve as a 
functional “major arterial” in the City. 

• It is therefore concluded that the temporary closure of the Veile Ave segment 
between West 6th Street to the north and Luis Estrada to the south will not have any 
adverse impact on traffic nor its functional classification. 

 
Should you have any questions, I can be contacted conveniently via e-mail at 
minagarf@minagrinc.com. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Sincerely,   
 
MINAGAR & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
(A California Corporation) 

 
Fred Minagar, MS, RCE, PE, FITE 
President/Contract City Traffic Engineer 
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